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Schedule of Board Meetings Held in 2023  

 

Attendance at the meetings are as follows: 

MEMBER

 

POSITION

 
NUMBER OF 

BOARD MEETINGS   
ELIGIBLE TO 

ATTEND
 

ATTENDANCE

BOYD DONKOR  BOARD 
CHAIRMAN  

8 8 

SULEMANA 

ABUBAKARI  
VICE 

CHAIRMAN  
8 7 

MARTIN KODOM  MEMEBER  8 8 

APPIAH DONYINA  MEMEBER  8 7 

NANA OWUSU GYARE II  MEMEBER  8 8 

MARY AMA OWUSU  MEMEBER  8 7 

KOFI BAFFOE  
(APPOINTED MARCH 13, 

2023) 

MEMEBER
 7 7 

 
Board Committees 
The Board exercises oversight responsibility through its standing committee, each of which has a 
charter that clearly defines its purpose, composition, structure, frequency of meetings, duties, 
tenure and reporting lines to the Board. In line with best practice, the Chairman of the Board is not a 
member of any committee. The Board has four standing committees, namely; the Audit, Finance and 
Compliance, Credit and Business Development Committee, Corporate Governance and Human 
Resource Committee and Tender and Technological Committee. Whilst the various Board 
committees have the authority to examine issues within their remit and report their decisions and/or 
recommendations to the Board, the ultimate responsibility for all matters lies with the Board. 

Audit, Finance and Compliance Committee 
The Committee is appointed by the Board for the purpose of assisting it in assessing the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the controls over financial reporting; the qualifications, independence and 
performance of the company's external auditors; the effectiveness, independence and overall 
performance of the company's Internal Audit; the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management 
framework and practices; the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's management 
recommendations regarding material risks related to the performance of the strategic and material 
activities of the company; and the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's compliance with 
legal and regulatory requirements and those concerning the company's responsibilities over the 
execution of operational activities as related to monetary policy.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Credit and Business Development Committee

The Credit and Business Development Committee has oversight responsibilities on behalf of the 
board for the approval of credit facilities for the company. The role of this committee includes but 
are not limited to the following: considering and approving specific loans above the Management 
Credit Committee's authority limit, as determined by the Board from time to time; reviewing 
Management Credit Committee's authority level as and when deemed necessary and 
recommending new levels to the Board for consideration; conducting quarterly review of credits 
granted by the company to ensure compliance with the company's internal control systems and 
credit approval procedures; reviewing the company's internal control procedures in relation to 
credit risk assets and ensuring that they are sufficient to safeguard the quality of the company's 
risk assets. Directs and guides the Bank's branding and is responsible for the overall image/look 
and feel of the Bank. This committee works with Key Management and business units to assist in 
the development of new products and enhance existing products in order to properly serve our 
customers and meet the growth and profitability objectives of the Bank.

Schedule of Credit Committee's Meetings Held in 2023 

Attendance at the meeting is as follows
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Schedule of Audit Committee's Meetings Held in 2023 

Attendance at the meeting is as follows
 

MEMBER

 

POSITION

 NUMBER OF 
BOARD MEETINGS  
ELLEGIBLE TO 
ATTEND

 

ATTENDANCE
 

MARTIN KODOM  CHAIRMAN  5 5 

APPIAH DONYINA  MEMEBER 5 3 

KOFI BAFFOE 
(APPOINTED MARCH 
13, 2023) 

MEMEBER 4 4 

 

 

MEMBER

 

POSITION

 NUMBER OF 
BOARD MEETINGS 

ELLEGIBLE TO 
ATTEND  

ATTENDANCE

 

SULEMANA 
ABUBAKARI  

CHAIRMAN  6 6 

NANA OWUSU 
GYARE II  

MEMBER 6 6 

MARY AMA OWUSU  MEMBER 6 5 
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Corporate Governance and Human Resource Committee

The role of the committee includes reviewing and making recommendations to the Board with 
respect to the size and composition of the Board, including reviewing Board succession plans, 
assisting the Board as required in relation to the performance evaluation of the Board, its 
committees and individual Directors. This committee is also responsible for recommending to the 
Board the terms and conditions of the service contract including remuneration package for various 
staff positions taking into consideration suggestions/demands of Trade Unions. All recruitments 
are routed through this Committee.

Schedule of Corporate Governance and Human Resource Meetings Held in 2023 

Attendance at the meeting is as follows

Tender and Technological Development Committee

This committee is responsible for providing leadership in the implementation of IT policy strategy 
for the entire Bank that will lead to effective use of IT to drive the Bank's business.  It again reviews 
and recommends all IT Policies recommended by the Management for the full Board approval. 
The Tender and Technological Development Committee also oversee the deployment of new and 
cost- effective IT solutions with a view to monitoring and enhancing product quality and customer 
service delivery, and reviewing their risk exposures to the Bank. It reviews any significant IT 
incidents that have occurred and monitors trends in repeated incidences. This committee 
assesses the procurement needs of the Bank and provide the Board with technical assistance and 
guidance and ensures that the bank upholds best value for money practices in all its transactions. 
It reviews and approves annual procurement plans and quarterly updates of procurement plans in 
order to ensure that they support the objectives and operations of the Bank. The Tender and 
Technogical Development committee ensures that the Bank conducts ethical procurement and 
also provides the checks and balances necessary for risk management and control purposes.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Corporate Governance and Human Resource Committee
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Schedule of Tender and Technological Development Committee Meetings Held in 2023 

Attendance at the meeting is as follows

Code of Conduct 

The Bank has in place a Code of Conduct for its Directors and all employees. It is signed off by all 
persons to whom it applies on an annual basis having read and understood the Code of Conduct 
and sanctions for breach. As part of the Bank's corporate governance practice, management has 
communicated the principles of the company's code of conduct to all employees. The code of 
conduct provides a basic framework and guidance for behaviours and business conduct. The 
code of conduct also serves as a reference point in all aspects of employee's working 
relationships with other employees, customers, suppliers, government officials, regulators, joint 
venture partners, competitors and the broader community.

Recruitment, Induction and Training of New Directors 

Individuals selected to be members of the Board have an appropriate diversity of skills and come 
from backgrounds necessary to provide the needed direction for the company. All new Directors to 
the Board are provided with a letter of appointment stating clearly the terms which shall govern 
their appointment after all the necessary regulatory approvals have been received with respect to 
the changes. The term of the directors is governed by the Bank of Ghana corporate governance 
directives, which limits the maximum period of service for the chairperson to six years and other 
members to nine years. New board members participate in a comprehensive induction program 
covering the company's financial, strategic, operational and risk management overviews to 
enable them effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Kofi Baffoe, a director of the Bank who was granted approval by the Bank of Ghana as Fit and 
Proper person to hold the position of a director on March 13, 2023 was taken through a 
comprehensive induction session from April 18, 2023 to April 19, 2023 to enable him effectively 
discharge his duties and responsibilities.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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POSITION

 
NUMBER OF 

BOARD MEETINGS  
ELLEGIBLE TO 

ATTEND
 

ATTENDANCE

 

NANA OWUSU 
GYARE II  

CHAIRMAN  3 3 

SULEMANA 
ABUBAKARI  

MEMBER 3 3 

MARY AMA 
OWUSU 

MEMBER 3 3 
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Board Qualifications and Composition 

In accordance with sections 19 to 21 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 2021, all Board 
members are qualified for the position and remain qualified through training. They have a clear 
understanding of their role in corporate governance and are able to exercise sound and objective 
judgement about the affairs of the Bank. They also possess, individually and collectively, 
appropriate experience, competencies and personal qualities, including professionalism and 
integrity. There is one (1) female Director on the Board and there are not more than two (2) 
Directors serving on the Board that are related persons.

Remuneration Structure 
The Bank has a transparent and comprehensive remuneration system underpinned by industry 
benchmarked approach to compensate staff, executives and the Board. This sound remuneration 
strategies and practices reflect and promote good corporate governance and sustainable long-
term value creation for staff, Board and shareholders. The objective is to ensure that remuneration 
aligns with the Bank's business strategy and changes in the markets in which the Bank operates, 
ensuring that the Bank's remuneration is consistent with best practices, promotes sound and 
effective risk management and is compliant with labour laws. 

Directors receive fixed fees for serving on the Board and its sub-committees in line with 
resolutions by shareholders at Annual General Meetings and approval from the Bank of Ghana. 

This sound remuneration strategies and practices reflect and promote good corporate 
governance and sustainable long-term value creation for staff, Board and shareholders.

Board Performance Evaluation 
The Board reviews its performance, the Board Committees and the performance of the individual 
Directors, every year. As part of the annual evaluation process, the Board evaluates the quality of 
the Board meetings and the way the Chairman chairs the meetings. The various Committees and 
their meetings proceedings are also evaluated to improve leadership, clarify roles and 
responsibilities, and improve teamwork, greater accountability, better decision-making, improved 
communication and more efficient Board operations.
During the Financial Year under review, the Board engaged Mikensey Consult to conduct an 
evaluation of its performance, that of its committees, the Chairperson, individual directors and the 
Board Secretary in compliance with sections 45 and 46 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 
2021.

In summary, the result of the Board Evaluation was that the performance of the Board and its 
Board Committees was effective for the year under review.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Business Strategy 

In the year under review the Board approved and monitored the overall business strategy of the 
Bank, taking into account the long-term financial interest of the company, its exposure to risk, and 
its ability to manage risk effectively. This was in line with section 13 of the Corporate Governance 
Directive of 2021.

The Board also approved the formulation and implementation of an overall risk strategy, including 
the risk tolerance/appetite; policies for risk, risk management and compliance, including anti-
money laundering and combating the financing of terrorism (AML/CFT) risk; internal controls 
system; corporate governance framework, principles and corporate values including a code of 
conduct or comparable document; and a compensation system.

Risk Management and Internal Controls 

The Board has put an effective internal control system in accordance with the Directive and has a 
risk management framework in place. The Key Management Personnel holding these roles have 
sufficient authority, stature, independence, resources and access to the board. 

Internal controls have been designed to ensure that each key risk has a policy, process or other 
measure, as well as a control to ensure that such policy, process or other measure is being applied 
and work as intended. In accordance with section 50 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 
2021, the company also has an Internal Auditor who has no involvement in the day- to-day 
activities and business line responsibilities of the company. He has the professional competence 
to collect, analyse financial information as well as evaluate audit evidence and communicate with 
the stakeholders of the internal audit function. He possesses sufficient knowledge of auditing 
techniques and methodologies and reports directly to the Audit, Finance and Compliance 
Committee and has direct access to the board. The Board recognizes the importance of external 
auditors as vital to the corporate governance process and engaged during the year, the services of 
Richard Owusu-Afriyie & Associates, Chartered Accountants; an independent, competent and 
qualified external auditor, to undertake this function.

Key Management Oversight 
In accordance with section 49 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 2021, the Board ensures 
that, the activities of Key Management Personnel are consistent with the business strategy and 
policies approved by the Board, including the risk tolerance/appetite. The Board has established a 
management structure that promotes accountability and transparency and oversees the 
implementation of appropriate systems for managing risks-both financial and non-financial to 
which the company is exposed. The company has engaged skilled and competent staff and 
provides training and development opportunities to sustain the delivery of short and long-term 
business objectives and the risk management framework that protects the reputation of the 
company.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Succession Plan 
Sections 16 and 17 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 2021, directs the company to 
continue to pursue a robust talent and succession management process, knowing that our 
success is hinged on our ability to attract and retain the best talent in the industry, whilst 
maintaining a bench strength that ensures seamless leadership continuity. The Bank promotes a 
culture of regularly reviewing and refreshing the succession pipeline to align with the fluid nature 
of the current talent landscape. Departmental Heads have been empowered to own the 
succession management process end-to-end in their respective businesses. Key Management's 
sponsorship and oversight of the process has ensured accountability from Heads of Department 
across the Bank. 

Our succession planning process prioritizes all critical roles at all levels in the organization to 
ensure business and leadership continuity.

Corporate Culture and Values 
The company has established a corporate culture and values that promote and reinforces norms 
for responsible and ethical behaviour in terms of the company's risk awareness, risk-taking and 
risk management in accordance with section 14 of the Corporate Governance Directive of 2021. 
 
This is achieved by the company through its board members setting and adhering to corporate 
values for itself. Key management and employees also create expectations that business should 
be conducted in a legal and ethical manner at all times. The corporate values, professional 
standards it sets together with supporting policies and appropriate sanctions for unacceptable 
behaviour are communicated to all employees.

Related Party Transactions 
The Board has in place policies and procedures to ensure that all related party transactions are 
carried out at arm's length in accordance with the Directive and in accordance with the Banks and 
Specialized Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). This is intended to ensure that there is 
no favourable treatment given to a related party. Therefore, in any connected transactions the 
company ensures all the necessary approvals are obtained prior to the execution of the 
transaction.

Separation of Powers 
There is a clear separation of roles between the Board Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer 
as set out in the Board Charter. The Board Chairman provides leadership to the Board and 
ensures its effectiveness in all aspects of the Board's roles. To this end, he ensures that the Board 
operates effectively and discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities. He has no executive 
functions and does not chair any of the Board's sub-committees. The Board has delegated the 
running of the day-to-day management of the Bank to the Chief Executive Officer, supported by 
the Key Management Staff. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing strategies 
recommended by the Board and leads the Management team in formulating and implementing 
operational decisions. 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Conflict of Interest 

The Bank requires all employees, consultants, contractors, suppliers, other associated persons 
and other third parties to always act honestly and with integrity and to manage fairly all conflicts of 
interest. In formulating measures and procedures to manage such risks, the Bank has 
implemented controls to ensure that employees engaged in different business activities carry on 
those activities at a level of independence that is appropriate, given the size and nature of such 
activities, to prevent the risk of damage to the interests of its clients, which may otherwise ensue.
The directors have a statutory duty not to place themselves in a position which gives rise to a real 
or substantial possibility of conflict of interest or duty in relation to any matter which is, or is likely to 
be brought before the board. There was no conflict of interest during the year under review.

Company Secretary
It is the duty of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board remains cognisant of its duties 
and responsibilities. The Board is satisfied that an arm's length relationship exists between it and 
the Company Secretary, who is not a member of the Board. In addition to providing the Board with 
guidance on its responsibilities, the Company Secretary keeps the Board abreast with relevant 
changes in legislation and governance best practices. All Directors have unfettered access to the 
services of the Company Secretary.

Anti-Money Laundering 
The company has established an anti-money laundering system in compliance with the 
requirements of the Anti-Money Laundering (Amendment) Act 2020 (Act 1044). These include 
due diligence for opening new accounts, customer identification, monitoring of high-risk accounts, 
record keeping and training of staff on money laundering which assist in reducing regulatory and 
reputational risk to its business.

Compliance Declaration 
The Board declares that the Bank has complied with the requirement of section 13 of the 
Corporate Governance Directive of 2021.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The Directors are required in terms of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) to maintain adequate 
accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to 
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Bank as at the 
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, 
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged 
to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 
control established by the Bank and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong 
control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, the Board of Directors 
set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective 
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an 
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Bank and all employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Bank's business is conducted in 
a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management 
in the Bank is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 
the Bank. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Bank endeavours to minimise it by 
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by 
management that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial 
records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed the Bank's cash flow forecast for the year to December 31, 2024 and, 
in light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Bank has or had 
access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

REPORT OF DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS 

The directors have pleasure in presenting the audited financial statements of the Bank for 
the year ended 31st December, 2023.

Incorporation

The Bank was incorporated on October 28,1978. The Bank was granted a license to operate 
as a rural bank by the Bank of Ghana in accordance with the Banks and specialized Deposit 
Taking Institutions Act 2016, (Act 930). 
The Bank is domiciled in Ghana where it is incorporated as a limited liability by shares under 
the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). The address of the registered office is set out on page 2.

Nature of business

The principal activity of the bank is to provide full banking services as a banking financial 
institution. The Bank was licensed to operate as a Deposit-Taking Bank Financial Institution 
regulated by the Bank of Ghana under the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673), (as repealed by the 
Banks and Specialized Deposit Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930)).
There have been no material changes to the nature of the Bank's business from the prior 
year.
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Review of financial results and activities 

The annual report and financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act,  2019 (Act 992) and in 
manner required by the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.

The Bank recorded a Net Profit after tax for the year ended December 31, 2023 of GHS 2,749,209. 
This represents a significant improvement from GHS  1,262,153 for the prior year.

The Bank's net income increased by 55.74% from GHS12,189,629 in the prior year to GHS 
18,983,595 for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

The Bank's net cash flow from operating activities amounted to GHS 15,867,449 for the year as 
against GHS 21,255,867 for the year ended December 31,2022 indicating a decrease of 
5,388,418 representing 25.35%.

The results for the year are summarized as follows

Stated Capital
The Bank's Stated Capital increased to GHS 3,120,044 at the end of the year 2023 from GHS 
2,978,573 of the previous year resulting in an increase of GHS 141,471 representing 4.75%. 
The increase emanates from the sale of shares of 707,355 at GHp 20  per share which amounted 
to GHS 141,471. The number of shares also increased to 22,191,152 at the end of the current year 
2023 from 21,483,796 in the previous year 2022 representing 3.29%.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
REPORT OF DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

2023            2022

GHS GHS

Profit  for the period before taxation amounted  to  3,504,227 1,774,693 

from which is deducted taxation  of (831,108) (496,304) 

Growth and Sustainability  Levy (175,211) - 

Deferred Tax Credit/(Charge) 251,301 (16,236) 

Giving a Profit   after taxation  of 2,749,209 1,262,152

2,061,907 946,614 

which is  added to the balance   brought forward on Retained Earnings of  7,220,884 7,074,421 

Giving a total of From which is deducted 9,282,791 8,021,035 

Dividend Paid - (420,195) 

Prior Year Adjustments (1,710,914) (379,956) 

  Credit Risk Reserve of (211,037) - 

Leaving a balance to be carried forward on Retained Earnings of 7,360,840 7,220,884 

 

Transfer to : Statutory Reserve Fund (687,302) (315,538) 
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Property, Plant and Equipment

There was no change in the nature of property, plant and equipment of the bank or in the policy 
regarding their use. As at December 31, 2023, the bank's investment in property, plant and 
equipment amounted to GHS 2,711,822 (2022: GHS 1,863,224), of which GHS 1,373,150 (2022: 
GHS 1,193,617) was added in the current year. 
Events after the reporting period
Events subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date are reflected in the financial 
statements only to the extent that they relate to the period under review and the effect is material. 
There were no subsequent events at the reporting date, 31st December 2023.

Going concern

The Directors believe that the Bank has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for 
the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis. The Directors have satisfied themselves that the Bank is in a sound financial 
position and that revenue from the assets under management would be enough to meet its 
foreseeable cash requirements. The Directors are not aware of any new material changes that 
may adversely impact the Bank. The Directors are also not aware of any material non compliance 
with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may 
affect the Bank.

Litigation statement

The Bank is not currently involved in any such claims or lawsuits, which individually or in the 
aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse effect on the business or its assets.
Terms of Appointment of the Auditors
Richard Owusu-Afriyie & Associates have indicated their willingness to continue in office as 
auditors of the bank and in accordance with Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) 
they so continue. Shareholders wishing to inspect a copy of the terms on which the Bank's 
auditors is appointed and remunerated may do so by contacting the Bank's Secretary.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Bank spent an amount of GHS 60,260 on Corporate Social Responsibility within the financial 
year.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
REPORT OF DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
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Audit Fee Payable

Included in the general and administrative expenses is the agreed auditor's remuneration of GHS 
50,000
Capacity of Directors
The Bank ensures that only fit and proper persons are appointed to the board after obtaining 
necessary approval from the regulator, Bank of Ghana.

Corporate Governance 

The Board of Directors is committed to ensuring good corporate governance in line with Bank of 
Ghana directives as a means of determining the direction and performance of the Bank. To this 
end, the Bank aims to comply with best practices in corporate governance.  A comprehensive 
corporate governance report for the year is included in the financial statements.
      
Anti - Money Laundering 

The Bank has established an anti-money laundering system in compliance with the requirements 
of Ghana's Anti-Money Laundering (Amendment) Act 2014 (Act874) and AML/CFT&P Guidance, 
July 2018. These include due diligence for opening new accounts, customer identification, 
monitory of high-risk accounts, record keeping and training of staff on money laundering which 
assist in reducing regulatory and reputational risk to its business.

Dividends

The Directors recommend for the payment of dividend of GHS 820,308.20 (2022: Nil) for the year 
ended 31 December ,2023 subject to Bank of Ghana approval. That is GHS 0.038 per share on 
21,587,058 ordinary shares which qualified for dividends as per closure of register of August 
31,2023 .

State of Affairs
The Directors consider the state of the Bank's affairs to be satisfactory.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Name of Director     Designation   Number of Shares 
Mr. Donkor Boyd     Chairman          1,794,375
Mr. Abubakari Sulemana (Retired on 28/10/23) Member            739,889
Mr. Appiah Donyina     Member            340,320
Mr. Kodom Martin Kwame    Member            261,586 
Mr. Baffoe Kofi (Appointed on 13/3/23)  Member            250,000 
Mrs. Owusu Ama Mary (Retired on 28/10/23) Member            115,529
 Nana Owusu Gyare     Member              34,612
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Directors' Interest in Contract

The directors have no interest in contracts entered into by the Bank. 

Acknowledgements
Thanks, and appreciation are extended to all of our Shareholders, Staff, and Customers for 
their continued support for the Bank.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of Kintampo Rural Bank PLC were approved by the Board of 
Directors on 20th April ,2024 and signed on their behalf by: 

 
Signature ..................................................…..      Signature .......................................…..                                             
 

………………………………….…..               ...........……………..……………..……. 
      Name of Director               Name of Director

BOYD DONKOR MARTIN KODOM
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Opinion
In our  opinion, the  accompanying  financial  statements  give a  true  and fair  view  of  the  
financial position of the Bank as at 31st  December, 2023, and of its financial performance, 
changes in equity  and its cash flows  for  the  year  then ended in  accordance  with International  
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)  and in the manner  required by the Companies  Act 2019 
(Act 992) and the Banks and Specialized Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 Act 930. 

What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements of Kintampo   Rural Bank PLC  for the year ended 31st 
December, 2023.
The financial statements comprise:
 the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
 the statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2023;
 the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
 the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
 the notes to the financial statement, which include a summary of significant accounting            
 policies.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the Code) issued by 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  
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Key Audit Matters
This section of our auditor's report is intended to describe the matters selected from those 
communicated with the directors that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements. The matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of Loans and advances to customers
The Bank continues to adopt IFRS 9-'Financial instruments', which requires the measurement of 
expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value 
through other comprehensive income. The Bank reviews its loans and advances for impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. There are significant judgements made in the areas in applying 
IFRS 9-Financial Instruments. These include:

Ÿ  Determining the stage of the financial assets and establishing groups of similar financial           
 assets;

Ÿ  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
Ÿ  Determining the Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) and Expected      

 Credit  Loss (ECL) for each type of loan.

Due to the significant judgments that are applied by management in determining whether an 
impairment loss has occurred, we considered this to be a key audit matter.
The Bank is required to compute loan provision in accordance with Bank of Ghana (BOG) 
prudential guidelines. There is the risk of inappropriate classification of loans and advances in 
accordance with BOG's guidelines that results in inaccurate loan impairment computations. The 
Bank is also required to make transfers from retained earnings to regulatory credit risk reserve 
based on the excess of BOG provision over IFRS impairment. The disclosures relating to 
impairment of loans and advances to customers are considered important to users of the financial 
statements given the level of judgement and estimation involved.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Loans at amortized cost of the bank amounted to GHS 34,335,842 as at 31 December 2023 (2022 
GHS 23,698,820) and impairment loss amounted to GHS 1,395,651 (2022 GHS 1,606,688) as 
presented in the financial statements.

We evaluated the design and tested the implementation of operating effectiveness of the key 
controls over the computation of impairment loss provisions. In evaluating the design of controls, 
we considered the appropriateness of the controls considering the nature and significance of the 
risk, competence and authority of person(s) performing the control, frequency and consistency 
with which the control is performed. In performing operating effectiveness of controls, we selected 
a sample of transactions based on the control frequency to determine whether the control 
operated throughout the year. 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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required to make transfers from retained earnings to regulatory credit risk reserve based on the 
excess of BOG provision over IFRS impairment. The disclosures relating to impairment of loans 
and advances to customers are considered important to users of the financial statements given 
the level of judgement and estimation involved.

found that the assumptions used by management were comparable with historical performance 
and have been assessed as reasonable.
We assessed the reasonableness of forward-looking information incorporated into the 
impairment calculations by challenging the multiple economic scenarios chosen and the 
weighting applied to account for non-linearity.
We further tested the disclosures to ensure that the required disclosures under IFRS 9 have been 
appropriately disclosed.

We further assessed as appropriate the classification of the Bank's loans and advances 
impairment provision in accordance with Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines and the transfer of 
any excess provision over the IFRS computed provision to the regulatory Credit Risk Reserve 
account.  

Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Report of the Directors, Chairman's Statement, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholders' 
Information but does not include the financial statement and our auditors report thereon, which we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report and the Chairman's Statement, which are 
expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not, and 
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date 
of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman's Statement, if we conclude that there is material misstatement 
therein, we are expected to communicate with those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and the Banks and 
Specialized Deposit Taking Institutions Act, 2016, (Act 930), and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2023 

23

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank 
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,  but  is  not a 
guarantee  that an audit  conducted  in  accordance  with  ISAs  will  always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Ÿ  Identify  and assess  the  risks  of  material  misstatement  of  the  financial  statements,          
 whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  design  and  perform  audit  procedures  responsive  to      
 those  risks,  and  obtain audit  evidence  that  is sufficient  and appropriate  to  provide  a      
 basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud      
 is higher than for one  resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,                        
 intentional  omissions,  misrepresentations,  or  the override  of internal control; 

Ÿ  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit             
 procedures  that  are appropriate  in  the  circumstances,  but  not for  the  purpose  of            
 expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control; 

Ÿ  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of                
 accounting estimates and related disclosures made by directors; 

Ÿ  Conclude  on  the  appropriateness of directors' use  of  the going concern basis of                    
 accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material   uncertainty             
 exists  related to events or conditions  that  may  cast  significant  doubt  on  the  Bank's       
 ability  to continue as  a going  concern.  If we conclude that  a material  uncertainty  exists,  
 we  are  required  to draw  attention  in  our  auditor's  report to the  related disclosures  in       
 the  financial statements  or,  if  such disclosures  are inadequate,  to  modify  our  opinion.  

Ÿ  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's            
 report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a 
 going concern;

Ÿ  Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,  structure  and  content  of  the  financial statements,   
 including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying        
 transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2022

GHS
Interest Income (7) 20,378,206 12,467,535

Interest Expense (8) (3,746,067) (1,915,123)

Net Interest Income 16,632,139 10,552,412

Commissions and Fees (9) 1,371,930 917,611
 

Other Operating Income (10) 979,526 719,606

Total Income 18,983,595 12,189,629

Impairment Loss on Financial Assets (11) (1,797,874) (1,219,474)

Specific Bad Debts (11 a) (273,251) 

Income Tax Expense (15 i) (831,108) (496,304) 

Growth and Sustainability  Levy (15 i) (175,211) 

Deferred Tax  (Charge )/Credit (15 i) 251,301 (16,236)
 

Profit For the Year 2,749,209 1,262,153

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income  for the year 2,749,209 1,262,153

Personnel Cost (12) (8,227,453) (5,457,278)

Depreciation and Amortisation (13) (627,535) (471,559) 

 Other Operating Expenses (14) (4,553,255) (3,266,625)

Net Operating Profit  Before Taxation 3,504,227 1,774,693
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AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

(NOTES) 2023 2022

ASSETS GHS GHS

Cash and Balances with ARB Apex Bank (16) 7,396,910  7,229,675  
Due from Other Banks (17) 3,201,638  2,091,837  
Non - Pledged Trading Assets (18) 47,949,676 35,168,410

 
Loans and Advances (19) 32,940,191 22,092,132

 Other Assets Accounts (20) 666,746

 
1,644,520

 Deferred Tax Assets (15 vi) 397,670

 

-

 Investments - (Long Term) (21) 97,814

 

49,704

 
Current Corporate Tax Credits (15iv) 562,377

 

173,696

 
Intangible Assets (22) 235,310

 

270,607

 
Right of Use Assets (23) 241,951

 

187,237

 

Property &  Equipment (24) 2,711,822

 

1,863,224

 

TOTAL ASSETS 96,402,105 70,771,042

LIABILITIES

Deposits and Current Accounts (25) 78,333,865 51,865,964

Loans from Other Financial Institutions (26) 117,511 55,734

  

  

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

Stated Capital (28) 3,120,044

 

2,978,573

 

Retained Earnings (29) 7,360,840 7,220,884

Statutory Reserve Fund (30) 3,500,412 2,813,110

Credit Risk Reserve (31) 211,037 -

Capital Reserve (32) 39,404 39,404

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS 14,231,737 13,051,971

 

 

  

Interest Payable and Other Liabilities (27) 3,438,810

 

5,663,560

 

Deferred Tax Liability (15 vi) 280,169 133,800

Other Liabilities 13

TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,170,368 57,719,071

 Signature ……………..………………………
         Signature ….....................................................

………..………..........................................

Name of Director 

  

  

 
   

 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

AND LIABILITIES 96,402,105 70,771,042

The financial statements were approved by the directors on 20th April ,2024  and were 

signed on their behalf by:

13

BOYD DONKOR MARTIN KODOM………..………..........................................

Name of Director 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

 

 
 

 
     

  
 

2023 2022

NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES GHS GHS

Net Profit Before Taxation 3,504,227

 
1,774,693

 

Depreciation and Amortisation 627,535
 

471,559
 

 Non - Cash items -
 

(213,041)
 

Impairment charge on Financial Assets 1,797,874
 

1,219,474
 

Profit before Changes in Working Capital 5,929,636
 

3,252,685
 

CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Changes in Loans & Advances to Customers (10,637,022) (3,661,835) 

Changes in Non - Pledged Trading Assets (3,251,088) 14,251,037 

Net Cash from Operating  Activities 15,867,449 21,255,867 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property and Equipment and Right of Use Assets (1,495,551)
 

(1,327,897)
 

Changes in Long Term Investment (48,110)
 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (1,543,661)
 

(1,327,897)
 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of  Ordinary Shares 141,471

 

121,106

 Changes in Borrowings 61,777

 

(205,735)

 Dividend Paid -

 

(267,569)

 Net Cash  from  Financing Activities 203,248

 

(352,198)

 

Net Increase /(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,527,036

 

19,575,772

 Cash and Cash Equivalent at Start 25,071,512

 

5,495,740

 
Cash and Cash Equivalent  at Close 39,598,548

 

25,071,512

 
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Balances with ARB Apex Bank 7,396,910

 

7,229,675

91 Days Treasury Bills 29,000,000

 

15,750,000

 
Balances with Other Banks 3,201,638

 

2,091,837

39,598,548 25,071,512

Changes in Other Assets Accounts 977,773 243,921 

Changes in Customers Deposits 26,467,901 8,217,182 

Changes in Interest Payable and Other Liabilities (2,224,751) (245,981)

  

Tax Paid (1,395,000) (801,142) 

  

17,262,449 22,057,009



KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2023 

29

1. General information 
 Kintampo Rural Bank Plc is a limited liability Bank incorporated under the Companies Act,     
 1963, Act 179 (now repealed and replaced by the Companies Act, 2019, Act 992) on 28th      
 October, 1978, and domiciled in Ghana. The Bank is licensed by the Bank of Ghana (BOG)      
 to receive deposits from and grant loans to customers and also provide any other service      
 ancillary to financial services allowed by the regulator. 
 The address of its registered office is Plot 131, Block D Sector 1, Kintampo, and a Postal             
 Address of P. O. Box 98, Kintampo, Bono East Region, Ghana.
 The Bank provides a wide range of services to a substantial and diversified client base that     
 includes other financial institutions, businesses, government and public corporations and      
 individuals. 

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial           
 Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board      
 (IASB) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019, (Act 992) and the Banks      
 and Specialized Deposit Taking Institutions Act, 2016, (Act 930).

2.2 Basis of Measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for         
 the measurement of available-for-sale financial assets that are measured at fair value. 

 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for          
 goods and services.  

 Fair value is the price that will be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an      
 orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of      
 whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In 
 estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Bank takes into account the                             
 characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants will take those characteristics       
 into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 The financial statements are presented in Ghana cedi which is the Bank's functional and         
 presentation currency. Except otherwise indicated, the financial information presented has 
 been rounded off to the nearest one Ghana cedi. 

2.4 Use of estimates and Judgement

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS required management to     
 make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting           
 policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates     
 and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors     
 that are believed to be under reasonable circumstances, the results of which form the basis 
 of making the judgement about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily      
 apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions     
 to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised           
 and in any future periods affected.

 Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the     
 period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions     
 are appropriate. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas       
 where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed      
 in Note 5.

2.5 Income and Statement of cash flows

 The Bank has elected to present a single statement of profit or loss and other                             
 comprehensive income and presents its expenses by function of expense method.

 The Bank reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method. Interest          
 received is presented within operating cash flows; interest paid is presented within                 
 operating cash flows.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements            
 are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,            
 unless otherwise stated. 
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d) Dividends income

 Revenue is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the payment is established                    
 (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the amount     
 of income can be measured reliably).

e) Right of Use 
 Payments for office rent are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
 of the lease after discounting it over the lease period. Contingent lease payments are                 
 accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the           
 lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed. 

3.2 General and Administrative expenses 

 Expenses include legal, accounting, auditing and other fees. They are recognised in profit       
 or loss in the period in which they are incurred (on an accruals basis). 

3.3 Employee Benefits 
 The Bank contributes to two defined contribution schemes (Social Security Fund and             
 Provident Fund) on monthly basis on behalf of employees and the last month outstanding     
 contribution is included in creditors and accruals.

I. Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)
 Under a National Deferred Benefits Pension Scheme, the Bank contributes 13% of                 
 employees' basic salary in addition to 5.5% deduction from employees' basic salary to             
 SSNIT for employee pensions.

II.  Provident Fund
 The Bank has a provident fund scheme for all employees who have completed probation      
 with the Bank. Employees contribute 10% of their basic salary to the fund whilst the Bank      
 contributes 12%. The obligation under the plan is limited to the relevant contribution and       
 these are settled on due dates

III. Termination Benefits 
 Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Bank is demonstrably                     
 committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate       
 employment before the normal retirement date. 
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 Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

IV. Short-Term Benefits 
 Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are     
 expensed as the related service is provided. 
 A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus      
 or profit-sharing plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this     
 amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be              
 estimated reliably.

3.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other       
 short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and           
 Bank overdrafts. 

 Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost or fair values in the statement of          
 financial position depending on the business model for managing the asset or the cash flow 
 characteristics of the asset. 

3.5 Intangible Assets

a) Initial recognition

 Intangible assets that are acquired by the Bank and have finite useful lives are measured at 
 cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment charges.

b) Subsequent Measurement 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits      
 embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including internally     
 generated goodwill, is written off in profit or loss as incurred.
 
c) Amortisation

 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over their estimated      
 useful lives, from the date they are available for use.

 The annual amortization rate for the current and comparative years is as follows:
" Computer Software User license and Microsoft Software Products: 10%
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3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 All Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is stated at historical cost less depreciation.             
 Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the             
 items and where applicable borrowing costs. 

 Cost of an item of PPE includes its purchase price and any direct attributable costs. Cost             
 includes the cost of replacing part of an existing PPE at the time that cost is incurred if the        
 recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an item of           
 PPE. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate      
 asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated            
 with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The            
 carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized. All other repairs and             
 maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in             
 which they are incurred. 

 Depreciation 
 Depreciation, based on a component approach, is calculated using the straight-line                 
 method to allocate the cost over the assets' estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 Assets        Estimated Useful Lives
 Furniture and Fitting        5 years
 Building        20 years 
 Office Equipment        4 years
 Motor Vehicles       3 years 
 Computers and Accessories     4 years 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at 
each financial year end. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and 
are included in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.7 Trading Assets and Liabilities 
 Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Bank acquires or              
 incurs principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part 
 of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking. 

 Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair          
 value in the statement of financial position with transaction costs taken directly to profit or      
 loss. All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net trading income in profit or loss.      
 Trading assets and liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

3.8 Financial Instruments

3.8.1 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

i) Recognition 
 Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and     
 balances due to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the     
 bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular     
 way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the     
 time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. Services     
 provided to customers on credit are recognised when the service is provided to the                    
 customers. The bank recognises due to customer balances when payment reaches the          
 bank.

ii) Initial measurement of financial instruments 
 The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose          
 and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring them. All financial          
 instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction cost, except in the          
 case of financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Amortised cost measurement
 The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset    
 or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the     
 cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the      
 initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment. 

iv) Fair value measurement
 The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on                
 quoted market prices or dealer price quotations for financial instruments traded in active          
 markets. For all other financial markets or for all other financial instruments fair value is 
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 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

 determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value     
 techniques, the discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which    
 market observable prices exist and valuation models. 
 Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting     
 standards, or for gains and losses arising from similar transactions. 
v) Offsetting
 Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the financial               
 position when and only when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
 and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability                
 simultaneously.

3.8.2    Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading 

 The bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have 
 been purchased or issued primarily for short term profit making through trading activities or    
 form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together for which there is      
 evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities 
 are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at a fair value. Changes in 
 fair value are recognised in net trading income, interest and dividend income or expense is     
 recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to         
 payment has been established.

 Included in this classification are debt securities, equities, short positions and customer          
 balances that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in           
 the near term.

3.8.3  The effective interest rate method 

 The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash           
 payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when                      
 appropriate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial            
 liability. The amortised cost of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the bank      
 revises its estimates of payment or receipts.

 The adjusted amortised cost is calculated based on the original or latest re estimated EIR      
 and the change in is recorded as 'interest and similar income' for financial assets and 'for          
 financial assets' and 'Interest and similar expense' for financial liabilities. The accounting      
 policies for the EIR method vary by instruments.
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3.8.4  Available-for-sale- financial investments 
 Available-for-sale investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments              
 classified as available-for-sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor 
 designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL). Debt securities in this category are 
 intended to be held for an indefinite period of this time and may be sold in response to                    
 needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

 The bank has not designated any loans or receivables as available-for sale. After initial           
 measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair      
 value.

 Gains and losses are recognised directly in OCI in the available-for-sale reserve. When the 
 investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is             
 recognised in the income statement, in other operating income. Where the bank holds           
 more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a             
 first-in-first-out basis.

 Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial investments is reported as             
 interest income using the EIR which takes into account any discount/premium and                 
       qualifying transaction cost that are an integral part of the instrument's yield.

 Dividends earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial investments are recognised in       
 the income statements other operating income when the right of the payment has been           
 established. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the      
 income statement in 'impairment losses on financial investments' and removed from the          
 available-for-sale reserve.

3.8.5   Held-to-maturity financial investments

 Held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or            
 determinable payments and fixed maturities that the bank has the intention and ability to           
 hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity financial investments are                
 subsequently amortised cost using the EIR less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated      
 by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral      
 part of the EIR. The amortisation is included in interest and similar income in the income            
 statement. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the      
 income statement within credit loss expense.

 If the bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity           
 investments before maturity (other in certain specific circumstances), the entire category       
 would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. Furthermore, the      
 bank would be prohibited from classifying any financial asset as held-to-maturity during the 
 following two years.
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3.9 Impairment of Financial Assets 

3.9.1 Identification and measurement of impairment 

 At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial 
 assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are             
 impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the      
 initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on     
 the asset that can be estimated reliably.

 The Bank considers evidence of impairment at both an individual and collective level. All             
 individual significant financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. All significant          
 assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any                    
 impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually             
 significant are then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping other financial assets 
 (carried at amortised cost) with similar risk characteristics. 
 
 The Bank records an allowance for expected credit loss for all loans and loans receivables, 
 and other debt instruments held at amortized cost, together with off balance sheet items            
 (loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts). In this section, all referred to as             
 'financial instruments'. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

3.9.2 Calculation of expected credit loss 
 ECLs are a probability-weighted average estimate of credit losses that reflects the time           
 value of money. Upon initial recognition of the financial instruments in scope of the                   
 impairment policy, the Bank records a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, being the        
 ECL that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months. 

 Subsequently, for those financial instruments that have experienced a significant increase     
 in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition, a loss allowance equal to lifetime ECL is                 
 recognized, arising from default events that are possible over the expected life of the                    
 instrument. The expected credit losses are weighted on the basis of three macroeconomic       
 scenarios (adverse, basic and favorable). 

 For the purposes of calculating expected credit losses, the financial instruments are                 
 classified in three stages as follows:

Ÿ  Stage 1: Stage 1 includes performing exposures that do not have significant increase in           
 credit risk since initial recognition. Stage 1 also includes exposures for which credit risk has 
 been improved and the exposure has been reclassified from Stages 2 or 3. 

 
 In this stage expected credit losses are recognized based on the probability of default               
 within the next 12 months. 
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Basic parameters used for the calculation of expected credit loss (Cont'd)
LGD, which is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD, varies according to the category of 
the counterparty, the category and priority of the claim, the existence of collateral and other credit 
enhancements. 

The Bank assigns credit rating to each loan at inception based on the internal scorecard 
methodologies for Financial Institutions, Corporates or Project Finance and all loans are subject to 
annual credit review if rated to a category up to BB+, while all loans below that rating are subject to 
semi annual credit review. The credit rating is primary input to the PD which is calculated based on 
statistical model and incorporates macroeconomic projections. 

The LGD estimates are according to values and determined estimates mainly by geography and by 
type of counterparty, with three main exposure classes: sovereign, public and private sectors.

In case of sovereign default of member countries, the Bank believes that its payment would remain 
uninterrupted, benefitting from its preferred creditor status resulting in no credit risk of impairment 
loss from sovereign exposures or loans guaranteed by sovereign. 

The Bank calculates expected credit losses based on the weighted probability of three scenarios. 
More specifically the Bank uses a statistical model to produce forecasts of the possible evolution of 
macroeconomic variables (GDP and unemployment rate) that affect the level of expected credit 
losses of loans under a baseline and under alternative macroeconomic scenarios (adverse and 
favorable) and also assigns the cumulative probabilities associated with these scenarios. The 
baseline scenario is the most likely scenario and is in line with the Bank's information for strategic 
planning and budgeting purposes.

3.9.1 Significant increase in credit risk 

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Bank compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a 
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers 
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is 
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

In order to determine whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since 
origination, and hence transition to Stage 2, a combination of quantitative and qualitative risk 
metrics are used. 
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3.9.7 Renegotiated financial assets. 

 When necessary, the Company seeks to restructure a financial asset that may involve     `     
 extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan terms and                              
 conditions. 

 These are generally renegotiated in response to an adverse change in the financial                   
 condition of the borrower.
 Modifications occur when the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or 
 otherwise modified. Some modifications result in derecognition of the existing asset and          
 recognition of a new asset with the difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to 
 the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded, while other                              
 modifications do not result in derecognition. Modifications that result in derecognition are      
 considered to be substantial modifications. A significant or substantial change is defined            
 when the customer enters into a new loan contract (i.e. completely new product and new      
 pricing) that has a different interest rate type, loan amount, term period (temporary term            
 extension is excluded), and/or customer (e.g. from single customer to joint or change in one 
 of the joint customer names). 

 A distressed restructuring is an indication of unlikeliness to pay where this is likely to result       
 in a diminished financial obligation caused by the material (change in the net present value      
 of the asset by more than 10%) forgiveness, or postponement of either principal, interest or, 
 where relevant fees. Distressed restructuring occurs when forbearance measures have           
 been extended towards a debtor. Therefore, those forborne exposures where the                      
 forbearance measures are likely to result in a diminished financial obligation are classified   
 as defaulted. 

 Restructured operations will be considered cured and normalized after two successful            
 repayments (average of 6 months per repayment) and could therefore be subject to a              
 Stage movement. 
 For loans that are modified the Company recalculates the gross book value based on the      
 revised cash flows on the financial asset and recognizes the profit or loss from the                        
 modification in income statement. The new gross book value is recalculated by discounting 
 the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill - are not subject to                      
 amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation 
 or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
 indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is                            
 recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable      
 amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal 
 and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the             
 lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash- generating units). 
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3.13 Investment Securities 

 Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction 
 costs and subsequently accounted for depending on their classification as either hold-to-      
 collect, hold-to-sell or hold-to-collect and sell. 

(i) Hold-to-collect
 Hold-to-collect investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments 
 and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to collect, and          
 which are not designated at hold to sell or hold to collect and sell. Hold-to-collect                      
 investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It must be          
 noted that IFRS 9 only considers fair value and amortised cost based on the business       X     
 models for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
 financial asset. Thus, all hold to collect assets is classified as amortised costs. 

(ii) Hold to sell
 The Bank carries some investment securities at fair value, with fair value changes                       
 recognised immediately in profit or loss as described in the accounting policy. 

(iii) Hold to collect and sell
 Hold to collect and sell investments is non-derivative investments that are not designated     
 as another category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot 
 be reliably measured are carried at amortised cost. All other hold to collect and sell                  
 investments are varied at fair value.  Other fair value changes are recognised directly in           
 equity until the investment is sold or impaired and the balance in equity is transferred to                    
 profit or loss. 

3.14 Pre-payment 

 Pre-payments are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
3.15 Stated Capital 

 Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.       
 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a           
 deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

3.16 Earnings Per Share 
 The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.     
 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
 the Bank by the number of shares existing as at 31st December. Diluted EPS is determined 
 by the number of shares existing at the end of December.

1948
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3.17  Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Bank's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Bank's 
 financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared. Dividend receivable     
 from unquoted investments is recognised when the bank's right to receive the dividend is      
 established.

3.18 Income Tax Expense
 The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is                      
 recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items               
 recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity - in which case, the tax is also      
 recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or                   
 substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position in Ghana where the      
 Bank operates. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with             
 respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, and             
 establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to      
 the tax authorities. 

 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences     
 arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the          
 financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from   c     
 initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination      
 that at the time of the transaction affects either accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 

 Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or           
 substantially enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to     
 apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax           
 liability is settled. 

 Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future                  
 taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The      
 carrying value of the Bank's investment property is assumed to be realised by sale at the           
 end of use. 

 The capital gains tax rate applied is that which would apply on a direct sale of the property      
 recorded in the statement of financial position regardless of whether the Bank would               
 structure the sale via the disposal of the subsidiary holding the asset, to which a different 
 tax rate may apply. The deferred tax is then calculated based on the respective temporary      
 differences and tax consequences arising from recovery through sale. 

 Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in                 
 subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is                  
 controlled by the Bank and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
 foreseeable future. 
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 Income Tax Expense (Cont'd)
 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable            
 right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred  income 
 taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on       
 either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an  intention to              
 settle the balances on a net basis. 

3.19 Provisions
 Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: 
Ÿ  The Bank  has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; 
Ÿ  It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 
Ÿ  The amount can be reliably estimated. 

 Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be                      
 required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market                            
 assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The                   
 increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost. 

 Where the Bank, as lessee, is contractually required to restore a leased property to an           
 agreed condition prior to release by a lessor, provision is made for such costs as they are      
 identified.

3.20 Write-offs 
 According to the IFRS 9 (B5.4.9), the gross carrying amount of a financial asset may be          
 directly reduced when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the financial asset     
 in its entirety or a portion of it. As such, the Company may record a write-off of Stage 3                
 loans. The Company may also, on an ad-hoc basis, examine the need for any further write-     
 offs of Stage 2 loans if there is relevant evidence. 

3.21 Write-backs 
 Recoveries (write-backs) of an asset, or part thereof, are credited to the income statement      
 if previously written off. 

3.22  Borrowings (Liabilities to Banks and Customers)
 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.                           
 Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method,      
 any differences between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is       
 recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings .Borrowings and           
 other forms of financial liabilities shall be de- recognised from the books only when they are 
 extinguished, that is when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or                       
 cancelled or expired.
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INTEREST INCOME7.

Interest on Loans and Advances 10,757,576 6,626,483

 

Interest on Investments 9,620,630
 

5,841,052
 

20,378,206 12,467,535
 

8. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest Paid on Savings Accounts 1,497,635  811,725  

Interest Paid on Fixed Deposits 2,236,772  1,089,935  
Interest Paid on Borrowings 11,660 13,463

Commitment Fees 1,236,946

 

832,041

 Commissions Received 134,984

 

85,570

 1,371,930

 

917,611

 
10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Sundry Income 979,526

 

719,606

 
979,526

 

719,606

 11. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS  ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Impairment Loss/(Gain) on Loans and Advances (211,037)

 

219,474

 

  Impairment Loss on Government Bonds 278,911

Impairment Loss on Investment with Discount Houses 1,730,000 1,000,000

1,797,874 1,219,474

  
3,746,067

 
1,915,123

 

9. COMMISSIONS AND FEES

Salaries and Wages 5,717,401

 

4,214,726

 

Social Security Contribution (13%) 437,631

 

315,076

 

Provident Fund Contribution 403,966

 

268,959

 

Medical Expenses 27,486

 

31,266

 

Staff Training Expenses 122,418

 

77,637

 

End of Service Benefits/Gratuity 628,328

 

Long Service Award 12,000

 

Bonus 534,331 274,246

Clothing Allowance 343,893 275,369

8,227,453 5,457,278

The average number of persons employed by the Bank during the year ended 31  

December 2023 was 122  (2022: 124)

 

  

  

11a. SPECIFIC BAD DEBT

Bad Debt Written Off 273,251

 

-

 

This represents loans and advances which were written off during the year after BOG  approval 

12. PERSONNEL COST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2023 2022

GHS GHS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2023 2022

GHS GHS

13.  DEPRECIATION &  AMORTISATION

Depreciation of Property,Plant & Equipments (Note 24 ) 524,552  380,266

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 22) 35,297  35,297

Right of Use Assets  (Note 23) 67,686
 
55,996

627,535
 

471,559

14.  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Occupancy Cost 758,847

 

485,146

General & Administrative Expenses 3,794,408

 

2,781,479

4,553,255 3,266,625

 

14b. GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES: include

Auditors Remuneration / Audit Fees 59,690

 

42,980

   - Fees 50,000

 

32,200

    - Expenses 9,690

 

10,780

15. INCOME TAX 

15 i. Income tax expense

The major tax expense components  for the years ended 31 December 

2023  and 2022 are:

Statement of profit or loss

Current income charge 831,108

 

496,304

Growth and Sustainability Levy 175,211

 

1,006,319

 

496,304

Deferred tax charge / (credit) (251,301)

 

16,236

Income tax reported in the statement of profit or loss 755,018

 

512,540

15 ii. Reconciliation of Effective Tax

The tax on the Bank's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise 

using the statutory tax rate on the applicable profit as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 3,504,227

 

1,774,692

Statutory income tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) 876,057

 

443,673

Non- deductible expenses for tax purposes 127,206 172,758

Effect on non-chargeable income (6,836)

Effect on capital allowance utilised (165,319) (120,127)

Growth and Sustainability Levy 175,211

Change in recognised temporary differences (251,301) 16,236

Income tax reported in the statement of profit or loss 755,018 512,540

Effective tax rate 21.55 28.88

 14a DIRECTOR EMOLUMENTS 324,686

 

216,051

Board Meetings Expenses 257,086

 

153,256

Directors Sitting Allowance 67,600 62,795
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2023 2022

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

GHS GHS
15 iii. CURRENT CORPORATE TAX ACCOUNT

 Year of 

Assessment 

 Balance 

as at

Jan 1 

 (Over) / 

Under 

Prov. In

Prior Years 

 Payments

During the 

Year 

 Provision for

the Year 

 Balance

as at Dec 31 

GHS GHS GHS GHS

2021 211,230 (581,230)

 

501,142

 

131,142

 

2022 131,142 (801,142)

 

496,304

 

(173,696)

 

2023 (173,696) (1,260,000)

 

831,108

 

(602,588)

 

15 iv. GROWTH AND SUSTAINABILITY LEVY

 Year of 

Assessment 

 Balance 

as at

Jan 1 

 (Over) / 

Under 

Prov. In

Prior Years 

 Payments

During the 

Year 

 Provision for

the Year 

 Balance

as at Dec 31 

GHS GHS GHS GHS

2023 (135,000)

 

175,211

 

40,211

 

Total (173,696) (1,395,000)

 

1,006,319

 

(562,378)

 

The tax computation ( Charge for the year) is subject to agreement with the  

 Domestic Tax Revenue Division of GRA

15 v. The movement on the deferred tax account  is as follows:

Balance at January 1 133,800

 

117,564

 

Origination / reversal of temporary differences:

recognised in the statement of profit or loss ( Note 15 i) (251,301)

 

16,236

 

Balance at December 31 (117,501)

 
133,800

 

15 vi. Recognised deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

Deferred tax assets (397,670)
 

Deferred tax liability 280,169
 

133,800
 

Net Deferred Tax Assets (117,501)  133,800  

16. CASH & BALANCES WITH ARB APEX BANK

Cash on Hand 2,272,048 1,735,213  
Balances with ARB Apex Bank - Current 635,260  504,331  
                                                       - 5% Apex Deposit 3,789,602 2,490,131  

ACOD 700,000
 

2,500,000
 

7,396,910
 

7,229,675

The Balances held with ARB Apex Bank includes a mandatory 5% reserve  deposit of 

GHS 3,789,602 (2022: GHS 2,490,131) which is not available for use in the Bank's 

day to day operations . Cash on Hand and Balances with ARB Apex Bank are 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

GHS GHS

17. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

CBG Bank 2,512,592 1,516,381

GCB Bank 689,046  575,456  

3,201,638 2,091,837

18. NON -PLEDGED TRADING ASSETS

These are made up of:

Government Securities  - T. Bills 42,850,000
 

21,600,000

Government Securities - Bonds 7,089,501
 

11,798,410

Money Placements with Discount Houses 2,730,000
 

2,770,000

52,669,501
 

36,168,410

Less: Impairment Charge (4,719,825)

 
(1,000,000)

47,949,676

 

35,168,410

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES

(a) Analysis by type of Product

Overdrafts 8,846,407

 

4,782,617

Loans 25,489,435

 

18,916,203

34,335,842

 

23,698,820

 Less:  Impairment charge (1,395,651)

 

(1,606,688)

32,940,191

 

22,092,132

(b) Analysis by Business Segment

Agriculture 3,651,362

 

2,234,598

Cottage Industries 275,118

 

695,674

 

Transport 140,000

 

270,975

 

Trading 15,721,463

 

9,127,906

Others (Workers) 14,547,899

 

11,369,667

34,335,842

 

23,698,820

Less:  Impairment charge (1,395,651)

 

(1,606,688)

32,940,191

 

22,092,132

(c) Analysis by Type of Customer

Individuals 28,841,213

 

21,541,753

Private Enterprise 3,889,484

 

868,773

 

Staff Loans 1,605,145

 

1,288,294

34,335,842

 

23,698,820

Less:  Impairment charge (1,395,651) (1,606,688)

32,940,191 22,092,132
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2023 2022

GHS GHS
(d) Impairment Charges /Allowances

 Individual allowances for impairment

 Balance at 1 January 1,606,688 1,387,214 

Impairment loss for the year:

     (Over)/Under Charge for the year (211,037) 219,474 

 Balance at 31 December 1,395,651 1,606,688 

(e) Bank of Ghana Provisions

Balance at 1 January 1,606,688 1,387,214 

Loan Impairment Charge - 219,474 

Balance at 31 December 1,606,688 1,606,688 

20. OTHER ASSETS  ACCOUNT

Interest and Commission Receivable 59,032 726,681 

Insurance Prepaid 33,299 23,685 

Office Account 375,634 764,515 

Stationery Stock 198,781 129,639 

666,746 1,644,520 

21. INVESTMENTS (LONG-TERM)

This is made up of:

Shares in ARB APEX Bank Ltd. 97,814 49,704 

97,814 49,704 

Investments in Securities have upon initial recognition been designated at fair value through 

equity and therefore eliminates or reduce any accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2023 2022

GHS GHS

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software

COST

Balance as at 1 Jan 352,967 352,967 

Additions during the year -  

Balance as at 31 Dec 352,967 352,967 

AMORTISATION

Balance as at 1 Jan 82,360 47,063  

Amortisation for the year 35,297
 

35,297
 

Balance as at 31 Dec 117,657
 

82,360
 

-
 

NET BOOK VALUE-31 Dec 235,310
 

270,607
 

The intangible assets relate to the purchase of T24 software user license and 

 Microsoft Software products

23. RIGHT OF USE  ASSETS

COST

Balance as at 1 Jan 327,586

 

193,306

         Additions during the year 122,400

 

134,280

         Write Off (103,420)

 

-

                 
Balance as at 31 Dec 346,566

 

327,586

         
DEPRECIATION

Balance as at 1 Jan 140,349

 

84,353

           
Charge for the year  the year 67,686

 

55,996

           

Write Off (103,420)

 

-

                 

Balance as at 31 Dec 104,615

 

140,349

         

Carry Value  - 31 Dec. 241,951 187,237

These relate to the lease of office buidlings for the banks branches across the region.
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2023 2022

GHS GHS

25. DEPOSITS AND CURRENT ACCOUNTS
                      

(a) Analysis by Type of Deposits

Current Accounts 12,650,909
        

9,567,096
     Savings Accounts 25,672,916

        
20,143,519

    Time Deposits 19,797,031

        
8,079,932

     Ezwich Holdings and Others 2,084,461

          

1,006,752

     Susu Deposits 18,128,548

        

13,068,665

    78,333,865

        

51,865,964

    (b) Analysis by Type of Customer

Individuals 54,309,231

        

35,958,913

    
Other Private Enterprise 2,215,112

          

1,466,657

     
Other Deposit Susu 18,128,548

        

12,003,169

    
Public Enterprise 3,680,974

          

2,437,225

     
78,333,865

        

51,865,964

    
Ten (10) Depositors to total deposit ratio 19.15% 9.70%

26. LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUITION

KFW Loan 27,867

              

55,734

          

NIA Loan 89,644

              

-

                

117,511

            

55,734

          

This represents Short - Term loans the Bank took from ARB Apex Bank   for its operations

27. INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Interest and Bills Payable 2,611,056

          

2,582,619

     

Sundry Creditors 766,804

            

2,828,648

     

Accrued Charges 60,950

              

252,293

        

3,438,810

          

5,663,560

     

These mainly relate to statutory payables and other account payables  .These are settled 

in the normal course of business with no overdue balance.

2023 2022

28. STATED CAPITAL Number Number

i)   Authorised Ordinary Shares of No Par Value 50,000,000,000

 

50,000,000,000

 

ii)  Issued Ordinary Shares of No Par Value 22,191,152

        

21,483,796

    

GHS GHS

iii)  Proceeds Issued for Cash-Ordinary Shares 2,744,512 2,603,041

iv)  Transfer from Retained Earnings 375,532 375,532

3,120,044 2,978,573

v) There is no unpaid Liability on any share

     and there is no share in Treasury.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC
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2023 2022

GHS GHS

29. RETAINED EARNINGS  ACCOUNT

Balance as at 1 January 7,220,884 7,074,421

Profit  for the year 2,749,209 1,262,152

9,970,093 8,336,573

Transfers to:

                          Statutory Reserve Fund (687,302)

           

(482,453)

                       

Dividend Paid -

                     

(420,195)

                       

Prior Year Adjustments (1,710,914)

        

(213,041)

                       

Credit Risk Reserve Movement (211,037)

           

-

                                

Balance as at 31st December

Per Statement of Financial Position 7,360,840

         

7,220,884

                     

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (Cedi per Share) 0.124

                 

0.059

                            

This represents the residual of cumulative annual profits . The Movement in the 

retained earnings account is shown as part of the statement of changes in equity.

30. STATUTORY RESERVE FUND

Balance at 1 January 2,813,110

         

2,330,657

                     

Prior Year Adjustment -

                     

166,915

                        

Add: Transfer from Retained Profits 687,302

            

315,538

                        

Balance as at 31 December 3,500,412

         

2,813,110

                     

Under Section 34 of the Banks and Specialized Deposit - Taking Institution Act 2016

(Act 930) the Bank has transferred the prescribed of 25% of the Net Profit after tax( 2022: 25%)

31. CREDIT RISK RESERVE 

Balance at 1 January

                         

-

                                

Add: Movement for the year 211,037 -

                                

Balance as at 31 December 211,037

                                   

This represents the excess of the total provisions for loans and advances provision 

 determined in accordance with the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines over the  

impairment loss for loans and advances recognised in the  statement of comprehensive  

income under  the  IFRS framework.

32. CAPITAL RESERVE

This represents Bonus Shares issue from ARB Apex Bank 39,404

                                         

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2023 2022

GHS GHS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December 2023, was based on the profit 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of GHS 2,749,209 (2022: Profit GHS 1,262,153)

and number of ordinary shares of 22,191,152 (22022: 21, 485,796), calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Bank 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of shares issued as at 31 December

Number of  ordinary shares at 31 December 

2023 2022

GHS GHS

2,749,209

21,483,796

707,356

22,191,152

1,262,153

20,878.263

605,533

21,483,796

Diluted Earnings Per Share

0.12 0.06

The calculation  of  diluted  earnings  per share at 31 December,2023   was  based on the 

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of GHS 2,749,209 (2022: Profit GHS 1,262,153)

and number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effects of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares of 22.191,152 (2022 21,483,796), calculated as

follows:

2023 2022

GHS GHS

1,262,1532,749,209

22,191,152

22,191,152

22,191,152

21,483,796

21,483,796

-

-

-

-

0.12 0.06

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Bank 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Number of Ordinary Shares (Basic)

Effect of Shares Purchase after 31st December

Share in treasury

Number of ordinary shares (Diluted) at 31 December

DIVIDEND PER SHAERE34

At the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2024, the directors recommend for approval,

the payment of dividend of GHS 820,308,20 for the year ended 31 December, 2023

(2022: Nil). This is subject of Bank of Ghana approval.  The proposed dividend is 

GHS 0.038 per share of 21,578,058 ordinary shares which qualified for dividend as at 31/8/2023.

33.
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35.  Capital Commitments
  There were no capital commitments at 31st December, 2023 (2022: Nil).

36.  Contingent liabilities
 There were no contingent liabilities at 31st December, 2023 (2022: Nil).

37. Country Analysis
 All assets and liabilities of the bank are held in Ghana.

38. Related Party Transactions and Balances
 A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of                
 business. These normally include loans advanced to and deposits from related persons.          
 The disbursements, related outstanding balances and deposits balances at the year-end      
 are as follows:

a.  Loans / Deposits to / from Directors and Connected Persons
        2023   2022
        GHS   GHS
  Loans Outstanding as at 31st Dec   Nil    Nil
 Fixed Deposits Balance as at 31st Dec  7,420,000    1,480,000
b. Loans to Key Management Staff and Connected Persons

        2023    2022
        GHS    GHS
   Loans Outstanding as at 31st Dec           413,474          425,019
                                                            

Interest rate charged on these loans and advances were at commercial rates. The loans granted 
are secured over property and provident funds  of the respective persons. No impairment loss has 
been recorded against balances outstanding during the period with directors and key 
management personnel. Interest on fixed deposits are the same as applied to other customers of 
the bank. All transactions with related parties are priced on arm's length basis and was entered 
into in the normal course of business.

c. Key Management Emoluments 
        2023   2022
                    GHS   GHS
Salaries and other related costs                                  679,025          550,389              

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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39. Financial risk management

 Introduction and overview
 An organization may be exposed to different types of financial risks depending on the                 
 size and complexity of business activities. Kintampo Rural Bank PLC, however, is                     
 generally exposed to:

 (a) Credit risk     (e) Compliance risk 
 (b) Liquidity risk     (f) Legal risk 
 (c) Market risk     (g) Reputational risk 
 (d) Operational risk     (h) Capital risk

The Bank's risk management framework, objectives, policies, procedures and processes for 
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling these risks, and regulatory capital 
management is presented below:

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors and Senior Management have developed and established policies and 
procedures to facilitate effective risk management. These policies and procedures provide 
guidance on risk appetite/tolerance limit, risk identification, monitoring and control and adherence 
to set risk limits. 

The risk management policies and procedures are continually reviewed to reflect changes in 
economic and financial landscape as well as products and services offered.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Bank's risk management framework. The responsibilities of the Board of Directors include; setting 
out the Bank's overall risk appetite/tolerance limit, ensuring that the Bank's overall risk exposure is 
maintained at prudent levels and consistent with available capital. They also include ensuring that 
Management as well as individuals responsible for Risk Management possess sound expertise 
and knowledge to accomplish the risk management function and that appropriate policies and 
procedures for risk management are in place.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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Credit Risk Management (Cont'd)

At 31st December, 2023, the Bank's Financial Assets were categorized under IFRS 9 as follows: 
Stage 1 - At initial recognition Performing
Stage 2 - Significant increase in Credit risk since initial recognition - Underperforming 
Stage 3 - Credit Impaired - Non- Performing

Impaired loans and Securities 
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the Bank determines that it is 
probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual 
terms of the loan/securities agreement(s). Interest on these loans are calculated and treated on 
non-accrual basis and portions shall only be considered when payments (settlement) are made. 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

GHS GHS GHS GHS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,598,548 - - 10,598,548

Non - Pledged Trading Assets 49,939,501 - 2,730,000 52,669,501

Loans and Advances to Customers 32,747,006 699,802 889,033 34,335,842

Other Assets ( Less Prepayments) 633,447 - - 633,447 

Gross Carrying Amount 93,918,502 699,802 3,619,033 98,237,337

Loss Allowances (2,388,950) (107,493) (3,619,033) (6,115,476)

Net Carrying Amount 91,529,552 592,309 - 92,121,861

2022 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

GHS GHS GHS GHS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,321,512 

Non - Pledged Trading Assets 36,168,410 - - 

Loans and Advances to Customers 22,302,689 311,742 1,084,389

Other Assets ( Less Prepayments) 1,620,835 - - 

Gross Carrying Amount 69,413,446 311,742 1,084,389

Loss Allowances (1,210,557) (311,742) (1,084,389)

Net Carrying Amount 68,202,889 - - 

9,321,512

36,168,410

23,698,820

1,620,835

70,809,577

(2,606,688)

68,202,889
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41. Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
 Fair value hie

 As at 31 December 2023, the Bank held the following financial instruments carried at fair          
 value on the statement of financial position: The Bank uses the following hierarchy for              
 determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1:quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair      
 value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value       that 
 are not based on observable market data.
 As at 31 December 2023, the Bank held the following financial instruments measured at fair 
 value: 

The Bank carries unquoted equity shares as available-for-sale financial instruments classified as 
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2023 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

GHS GHS GHS GHS

Financial assets

Cash and Balances with Other Banks 10,598,548 - 10,598,548 - 

Non- Pledged Trading  Assets 47,949,676 - 47,949,676 - 

Loans and advances 32,940,191 - 32,940,191 - 

Financial Liabilities

Current Accounts 12,650,909 - 12,650,909 - 

Savings Accounts 25,672,916 - 25,672,916 - 

Time Deposits 19,797,031 - 19,797,031 - 

Ezwich Holdings and Others 2,084,461 2,084,461 

Susu Deposits 18,128,548 - 18,128,548 - 

Loans from Other Financial Institutions 117,511 117,511 

Interest  Payables and Other Liabilities 3,438,810 - 3,438,810 - 

Total 81,890,186 - 81,890,186 - 

Other assets 666,746 - 666,746 - 

Total 92,155,161 - 92,155,161 - 



KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2023 

79

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

During the reporting period ending 31 December 2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 
and Level 3 fair value measurements. No other transfers were made.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

2022 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

GHS GHS GHS GHS

Financial assets

Cash and Balances with Other Banks 9,321,512 - 9,321,512 - 

Non- Pledged Trading  Assets 35,168,410 - 35,168,410 - 

Loans and advances 22,092,132 - 22,092,132 -

Financial Liabilities

Current Accounts 9,567,096 - 9,567,096 - 

Savings Accounts 20,143,519 - 20,143,519 - 

Time Deposits 8,079,932 - 8,079,932 - 

Ezwich Holdings and Others 1,006,752 - 1,006,752 

Susu Deposits 13,068,665 - 13,068,665 - 

Loans from Other Financial Institutions 55,734 55,734 

Interest  Payables and Other Liabilities 5,663,560 - 5,663,560 - 

57,585,258 - 57,585,258 - 

   

1,644,520 - 1,644,520 - 

68,226,574 - 68,226,574 - 

Total

Other assets 

Total
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2023 2022

GHS GHS

Interest earned and other operating income 22,729,663 14,104,752

Direct cost service (8,231,723) (5,118,953)

Value added by banking services 14,497,940 8,985,799 

Non-banking services 251,301 (16,236) 

Specific Bad Debts (273,251) - 

Impairments on Financial Assets (1,797,874) (1,219,474)

Value added 12,678,116 7,750,089 

Distributed as follows:

To Employees:

Directors (without executives) 67,600 62,795 

Executive directors

Other employees 8,227,453 5,457,278 

To Government:

Income Tax 1,006,319 496,304 

- - 

To providers of capital

Dividends to shareholders - - 

To expansion and growth

Depreciation 592,238 436,262 

Amortisation 35,297 35,297 

Retained earnings 2,749,209 1,262,153 

12,678,116 7,750,089 

80

42. Value Added Statement

43. Accounts Classification 
 The 2022 accounts have been re - classified to conform to the 2023 presentation.

44. Prior Year Adjustment of GHS 1,710,914
 This represents the impairment of the Government Bonds in respect of 2022 financial               
 year now recorded.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2023
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KINTAMPO RURAL BANK PLC

 

2023 2022

PERSONNEL  COST GHS GHS

Salaries and Wages 5,717,401

 
4,214,726

Social Security Contribution 437,631
 

315,076

Provident Fund Contribution 403,966
 

268,959

Medical Expenses 27,486  31,266

Staff Training Expenses 122,418  77,637

Staff Clothing Expenses 343,893  275,369

End of Service Benefits/Gratuity 628,328
 

-

Bonus 534,331

 
274,246

Long Service Award 12,000

 

-
8,227,453

 

5,457,278

OCCUPANCY COST

Repairs and Maintenance 149,064 65,663

Rent and Rate 67,051 42,341

Electricity and Water 368,905 240,242

 

 

 

 

758,847

 

485,146

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Travelling and Transport 293,224

 

205,383

Printing and Stationery 312,223

 

177,312

Board Meeting Expenses 257,086

 

153,256

Specie Movement Expenses 46,470

 

30,275

Audit Fees 50,000

 

32,200

VAT and Other Levies  on Audit Fees 10,950

 

7,052

Audit Expenses 9,690

 

10,780

Insurance 130,106

 

127,089

Postages and Telecommunications 51,782

 

37,061

Fuel & Lubricant 272,751

 

260,702

Directors Sitting allowance 67,600

 

62,795

Legal Expenses 2,300

 

900

Newspapers, Subscriptions and Periodicals 55,284

 

60,876

Bank Charges 75,254

 

33,300

Advertising and Publicity 20,768

 

43,667

Annual General Meeting Expenses 82,206

 

16,057

Social Responsibility 60,260

 

28,150

Maint Support/Licence Fees -Computer 572,944

 

357,411

Loan Recovery 4,850

 

2,100

Microfinance / Susu Expenses 973,904

 

760,248

Mobilization Expenses 78,614 50,980

Deposit Protection Insurance 148,500 117,000

Business Promotion/Entertainments 19,753 21,617

Office  Expenses 161,427 164,675

Generator Running 36,462 20,594

3,794,408 2,781,479

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,780,708 8,723,903

 

 
Bungalows/Housing  Expenses 16,667 25,148

Security Expenses 110,660 69,878

Sanitation & Cleaning Expenses 46,500 41,875
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ANALYSIS  OF  SHAREHOLDINGS  AS AT  31 DECEMBER, 2023

Number of Shareholders

The Bank had Two Thousand and Twenty - Eight   (2,028)  ordinary shareholders at 

 31 December ,2023  distributed as Follows: 

Category Number of Number of Percentage

Shareholders Shares Holding (%)

1-1,000 1,068

 

461,363

 

2.08%

1,001-5,000 586

 

1,354,994

 

6.11%

5,001-10,000 138

 

1,022,915

 

4.61%

Over 10,000 236

 

19,351,880

 

87.21%

Total 2,028

 

22,191,152

 

100.00%

 

 

Directors' shareholding

Name of Director Shares Holding (%) 

Mr. Donkor Boyd 1,794,375 8.09%

Mr. Abubakari Sulemana ( Retired on 28/10/2023) 739,889 3.33%

Mr. Appiah Donyina 340,320

 

1.53%

Mr. Kodom Martin Kwame 261,586

 

1.18%

Mr. Baffoe Kofi ( Appointed on 13/3/2023 ) 250,000

 

1.13%

Mrs. Owusu Ama Mary (Retired on28/10/2023 ) 115,529

 

0.52%

Nana Owusu Gyare 34,612

 

0.16%

Total 3,536,311

 

15.94%

Twenty (20) largest Shareholders

Name of Shareholder

Number of 

Shares

 Percentage 

Holding (%) 

Mr. Effah - Baafi Yaw           2,085,494 
9.40%

Mr.Donkor Boyd 1,794,375

 

8.09%

Mr. Gyamfi - Boateng Isaac 744,494

 

3.35%

Mr. Abubakari Sulemana 739,889

 

3.33%

Mr. Takyi Ekuban Kwabena 615,720

 
2.77%

Mr. Donyina Ameyaw Samuel 571,118
 

2.57%

Mr. Apanga Stephen 568,926
 

2.56%

Mr. Agyapong  Adu - Baah 505,491  2.28%

Mr. Takyi Kwame Asua 500,000  2.25%

Mr. Kwadwo Asante Philip 421,719  1.90%

Mrs. Serwaa's Children Akua 349,851
 

1.58%

Mr. Appiah Donyina 340,320

 
1.53%

Mr. Kwasi Fah Joseph 336,205

 

1.52%

Mr. Kodom Martin Kwame 261,586

 

1.18%

Mr. Kwabena Appiah Joseph 260,372

 

1.17%

Mr. Asamoah - Frimpong Melody 250,096

 

1.13%

Mr. Baffoe Kofi 250,000

 

1.13%

Mr. Kwaku Adamu George 240,106

 

1.082%

Mr. Yaw Wiredu Peprah 235,989

 

1.063%

Mr.Gyasi Kwasi 213,169

 

0.961%

Reported Totals 11,284,920 50.9%

Unreported Totals 10,906,232 49.1%

Total 22,191,152 100%
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Proxy Form for use at the 38th Annual General Meeting to be held on Saturday 30th 
November, 2024at 10:00 am.

 
I/We…………………………..............................…………………………………………………………………..of……………....………………

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

…….........................................................................…..being a member of the above-named Company hereby 

appoint………………………………..................................................……….or failing him/her the chairman of the 
meeting as my/our Proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of the members to be held on Pentecost Church, Gruma-Line, Kintampo on 
Saturday,30th November, 2024 and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated this…………………….....................................................……..day of …………........................………………………….2024

Shareholder's Signature…………………………….........................................................................…………………………………

PROXY FORM
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